
 

 
 
 

 
Agenda 
Smethwick Town Deal Board 
 

Thursday, 29 February 2024 at 10.00 am 
At This meeting will be held online. 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as 

required by Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 

Regulations 2012. 
 

  
1   Welcome and Opening Remarks 

 
The Chair will welcome attendees to the meeting and 
make opening remarks. 
 

 

 
2   Apologies 

 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

 
3   Minutes and Action Log 

 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 15 
November 2023 as a correct record. 
 

7 - 12 

 
4   Declaration of Interests 

 
To receive any declarations of interest from board 
members relating to any item on the agenda.  
 

 

 
5   Governance 

 
To provide an update on: 

• Board Membership 
• Scrutiny 

13 - 14 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

  
6   Long Term Plan 

 
To provide an overview/update on Smethwick Long Term 
Plan. 
 

 

 
7   Project Reporting 

 
Project updates for: 

•       Rolfe Street Canalside Regeneration Project 
•       Midland Met Learning Campus 

 
 

To receive an update on project progress and monitoring 
information for the period of October - December 23 
(Private item) 
  
 

15 - 94 

 
8   Forward Plans 

 
To receive update on the forward plans: 

• Press release/Publicity 
• Site visits 

 

95 - 96 

 
9   Any other Business 

 
To receive any other business raised by members for 
discussion. 
 

 

 
10   Closing Remarks 

 
 

 

Page 2



 

 
Shokat Lal  
Chief Executive Sandwell Council House  
Freeth Street  
Oldbury  
West Midlands  
 
Distribution  
A Taylor (Chair)  
J Thompson, A Ali, Cllr A Lewis, Cllr B Piper, Cllr F Shaeen, Cllr K 
Carmichael, Cllr M Uddin, Cllr P Hughes, Cllr Z Ahmed, D Holden, G Brown, 
J Singh, J Wood, L Bird, M Wildman, R Flatley, J Spellar MP, S Shingadia, S 
Partridge and S Howells.  
 
Contact: town_deal@sandwell.gov.uk 
 

Page 3



 

 
Information about meetings in Sandwell 
 

 
 

If you are attending the meeting and require assistance to 
access the venue, please contact Democratic Services 
(democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk). 
 

 
 

If the fire alarm sounds, please follow the instructions of the 
officers present and leave the building by the nearest exit. 
 

 
 

Only people invited to speak at a meeting may do so.  
Everyone at the meeting is expected to be respectful and listen 
to the discussion. 

 
 

Agendas with reports with exempt information should be 
treated as private and confidential.  It is your responsibility to 
ensure that any such reports are kept secure.  After the 
meeting confidential papers should be disposed of in a secure 
way. 
 

 
 

This meeting may be recorded and broadcast on the Internet.  
If this is the case, it will be confirmed at the meeting and 
further information will be provided.  
 
 

 
 

You are allowed to use devices for the purposes of recording 
or reporting during the public session of the meeting.  When 
using your devices they must not disrupt the meeting – please 
ensure they are set to silent. 
 

 
 

Members who cannot attend the meeting should submit 
apologies by contacting Democratic Services 
(democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk) 
 

Page 4

mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk
mailto:democratic_services@sandwell.gov.uk


 

 

All agenda, reports, minutes for Sandwell Council’s meetings, 
councillor details and more are available from our website 

 

Page 5

https://sandwell.moderngov.co.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


This page is intentionally left blank



Smethwick Town Deal Board Minutes  
15 November 2023 

 

Present: 
 

A Taylor (Chair), J Thompson (Vice-Chair), A Lewis MP, Cllr C Padda, 
Cllr J Uddin, Cllr P Hughes, D Holden, J Singh and L Bird.   
 

Also Present: A Bell, E Parkes, H Insley, J Langford, M Farid, M Wragg, R Rahim, T 
Lloyd and T McGovern.  

 

Item No. Item Description Responsible 
Officer 

1.0  Welcome and Opening Remarks 
The Chair will welcome attendees to the meeting and make opening remarks. 
 
The Chair welcomed board members to the meeting and outlined the agenda 
items for discussion. The meeting was quorate.  

 

2.0 
 
  

Apologies 
To receive any apologies for absence. 
  
Apologies were received from the following board members: - 
  

• Cllr F Shaeen 
• J Wood 
• S Shingadia 
• G Brown 
• M Wildman 

  

 

3.0 
 
  

Minutes of the last meeting 
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 7 Sept 2023 as a correct record. 
  
Minutes of the last board 
Board members agreed minutes of the meeting held on 7 Sept 2023 were a 
correct record.  
  
Action Log 
Updates recorded on the attached Action Log. 
  

Alan Taylor 

4.0 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Declarations of Interests 
To receive any declarations of interest from board members relating to any item 
on the agenda. 
  
The Chair asked board members to raise any declarations of interests. None 
were forthcoming. 
  
The Chair asked board members to raise any declarations during discussions 
should they need to and reminded members that they can contact the PMO at 
any time to raise comments, queries and seek clarification on discussions. 
  

All 

5.0 
 
 
 
 
 

Project Reporting 
To receive an update on project progress and monitoring information for the 
period of July - Sept 2023. 
 
The Chair invited project leads for three of the five projects to provide a detailed 
update for board members. A summary of the discussion includes: - 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
Rolfe Street Canalside Regeneration Project 
Project Lead provided an update. An update regarding site activities was 
provided and costs incurred to date. A demolition contractor has been appointed 
from an existing framework. A Planning application was submitted end of 
October and is currently out for Consultation. Planning determination is due at 
the end of the year. Demolitions are expected to take 5-6 months.  
 
Grove Lane Regeneration 
Project Lead provided an update. CPO is currently being pursued. An update on 
timescales was provided and confirmation that a planning application to support 
the CPO would be submitted at the end of this month.  
 
Midland Met Learning Campus 
Project Lead provided an update. Planning permission was granted on 25 
October 2023. Procurement has been concluded for a Contractor which will be 
publicly announced in the coming weeks. Approval has been received from the 
NHS Trust Board for a number of items relating to procurement activities and 
lease/ partnership agreements.  
 
Training providers for the new learning campus include Sandwell College, Aston 
University and University of Wolverhampton. Other potential partners are also 
being explored. 
 
Concerns were raised regarding any potential damages and defects to the 
building and who would be hold responsibility. It was confirmed the Contractor 
would hold responsibility for anything up to 10-15 years.  
 
Project Update – Reporting Period July – September 2023 
Board members received Item 5 - Smethwick Town Deal Board Reporting July – 
Sept 2023 prior to the board meeting. This appendix was shared on screen to 
provide an update on project progress. 
 
The following discussions were held as a result of the information presented: - 
 
Ron Davis Centre 
Delays have occurred regarding delivery and installation of IT equipment. 
Despite this, learners are welcomed to the centre in the new classrooms to 
undertake skill sessions that do not require IT. Most of the funding has been 
spent and small underspend has been allocated for retention. This will be used 
by the end of the financial year.  
 
Rolfe Street Canalside Regeneration 
Funding has been pushed back to future years to reflect the updated delivery 
programme. A planning application has been submitted with determination 
expected by end of December. Demolition contractor has been appointed from 
an existing framework. Once contractors are onsite, they will proceed with light 
works e.g. removal of small elements. Once planning determination is 
announced, demolition of assets will commence, subject to decision.   
 
Grove Lane Regeneration 
Funding has been pushed back to future years due to CPO approach. As a 
result, this project has been RAG rated High Risk.  
 
Midland Met Learning Campus 
Funding has been pushed back to future years to reflect the updated delivery 
programme. Despite planning permission being granted and appointment of 
contractor, the delivery programme has been pushed back to start on-site once 
determination of co-funding is known. Once co-funding from WMCA is 

Page 8



announced/ secured, a final cost plan will be developed and on-site works are 
expected in January 2024.   
 
Smethwick Connected 
This project is ahead of schedule. Phase 4 works are expected to begin later 
this month as consultations have now closed. Phase 5 has been brought 
forward from 2024/25 and near completion. Footfall counters will be monitored 
over the next financial year.  
 

6.0 
 
  

Forward Plans 
To receive update on the forward plans  
• Press Release/ Publicity/ Site visits 

 
Board members received an updated Forward Plan for News and Media. Key 
things to note included: - 
 

• An Awards Ceremony for learners at the Ron Davis Centre is planned for 
Friday 17 November. Board members were informed limited tickets were 
remaining and members should contact the PMO should they wish to 
secure an invite.  

 
• A news article would be published in due course to promote the success 

of planning determination and appointment of contractor for the MMLC.  
 
 

 

7.0 
 
 

Any Other Business 
 
Local Plan for Smethwick 
Government announced a long-term plan for towns on 23 October 2023, of 
which Smethwick Town has been selected for £20m investment over a 10-year 
period from financial years 24/25 - 34/35. It comprises of a 25% resource/ 
revenue and 75% capital. A brief summary of the published prospectus was 
presented to Board Members and included: - 
 
The funding will be governed by 3 themes: - 

1. Safety and Security of High Streets 
2. Heritage and Regeneration 
3. Transport and Connectivity 

 
There are requirements for Towns to secure funding. This includes: - 

- Long-term investment/ Regeneration Plan to be developed (Similar to 
Town Investment Plans that Towns Fund Programme developed) 

- Establishment of a Town Board for Smethwick. Government has noted if 
a Town Deal Board already exists through Towns Fund, then this should 
be adopted for the Long-Term Plan Programme  

 
The Government have also established a Towns Taskforce to assist Town 
Boards in terms of delivery. 
 
Action: PMO to forward Government prospectus to Board Members. 
  
The Chair queried which other local towns have been granted this funding. It 
was confirmed Darlaston, Dudley and Bilston.  
 
A concern was raised regarding the funding allocation, that £20m over a 10-year 
period isn’t a huge amount. It was highlighted the revenue will go towards 
investment in CCTV, safety, community projects etc. and engagement with local 
communities would take place to seek what community level projects are 
desired. 
 

 

Page 9



Board Members were asked for their view on the proposal for the Town Deal 
Board to be utilised for the Long Term Plan Programme. This would result in the 
board being reviewed to ensure membership is sufficient for both programmes.  
Board members agreed to this approach. The Chair agreed that Board 
Membership would need to be reviewed.  
 
A comment was raised regarding input of Sandwell Business Ambassadors and 
that their membership on both boards would be grateful. The Chair agreed to 
explore this. 
  
 

8.0 
 
 
 
 
  

Closing Remarks 
 
The Chair thanked board members for their attendance and contributions to the 
meeting.  
 
Meeting closed at 10:37. 

 

  

Page 10



 

 

 

Smethwick Town Deal Board 
Action Log 

 

Open Actions 

Date Description Responsible 
Officer(s) Update 

15.11.23 PMO to forward Government 
Prospectus to Board Members 

PMO Completed.  

07.09.23 Programme Management Office to 
look into Birmingham's Active Travel 
(cycle) delivery plans that link to the 
new Hospital and timescales and 
report this back to the board. 

R Rahim Ongoing  

 

 

Closed Actions 

Date 
Raised 

Date 
Closed Description Responsible 

Officer(s) Update 

7.9.23 15.11.23 Programme Management Office to collate 
original FBC costs and costs to date for 
Midland Met Learning Campus design 
works and share this with board members. 

R Rahim Complete  

7.9.23 15.11.23 Councillor Hughes to email key contacts 
and board members to seek interest and 
support for an active travel campaign, to 
promote the Smethwick Connected project. 

Cllr P 
Hughes 

Completed – Cllr 
Hughes emailed Active 
Travel team with 
elected members now 
attending the working 
group 

28.2.23 15.11.23 PMO to circulate baseline footfall data for 
Smethwick Connected 

PMO Complete. 

23.5.23 07.09.23 PMO to add forward planning of the next 
meeting to the end of the Agenda so it can 
be decided who is to be invited for the next 
meeting. 

PMO Completed – on 
Agenda for 7 
September 2022 and 
ongoing 

23.5.23 07.09.23 Introduce A Ali to Ron Davis Centre Project 
Lead.  

PMO Completed 

23.5.23 07.09.23 PMO to confirm whether Smethwick 
Connected Phase 2 formal completion of 
works or whether it is to be moved to align 
with the milestones.  

PMO/Rina 
Rahim 

Completed – milestone 
changed to formal 
completion June 2023 

23.5.23 07.09.23 PMO to organise a site visit for Smethwick 
Connected. 

PMO Completed – 
undertaken on 11th 
August 

23.5.23 07.09.23 PMO to share concerns/comments with 
Project Manager for Smethwick 
Connected. 

PMO/Rina 
Rahim 

Completed – updated 
Project Lead with 
concerns  Page 11



Closed Actions 

Date 
Raised 

Date 
Closed Description Responsible 

Officer(s) Update 

28.2.23 23.5.23 MMLC to provide further information 
pertaining to costs to board members. 

Project 
Lead – 
Austin Bell 
via PMO 

Circulated to Board 
Members.  

28.2.23 23.5.23 PMO to look at assurance and come 
forward with a proposal regarding lowering 
threshold for board approval.  

Rina 
Rahim 

Update provided at 
Board Meeting 
23.5.23 

28.2.23 23.5.23 PMO to approach WMCA for Board 
representative. 

Rina 
Rahim/ 
Maaria 
Farid 

WMCA will attend 
Board as when 
required. Forward 
planning to be picked 
up at the end of each 
meeting to decide 
who is to be invited at 
the next meeting. 

29.11.22 23.5.23 PMO to request detailed activities against 
spend for the Midland Met Learning 
Campus project and report back to Town 
Deal Board members. 

Rina 
Rahim/ 
Maaria 
Farid 

Update provided at 
Board meeting 
23.5.23. 

29.11.22 28.2.23 PMO to feedback concerns regarding the 
absence of director/ executive officers and 
ensure at least one executive officer is in 
attendance at future meetings. 

Rina 
Rahim/ 
Emma 
Parkes 

Raised concern to 
director/executive 
officers  

29.11.22 28.2.23 Cllr Peter Hughes to feedback comments 
raised by Board Members to SMBC 
Procurement Services and to seek input 
regarding what can/ cannot be done in 
regard to penalising contractors should 
social value not be met. 

Cllr P 
Hughes 

Updated provided at 
Board meeting 28.2.23 

29.11.22 28.2.23 PMO to request detailed activities against 
spend for the Midland Met Learning 
Campus project and report back to Town 
Deal Board members. 

Rina 
Rahim/ 
Emma 
Parkes 

Response emailed 
separately.  Project 
update to be provided 
at Board meeting. 

29.11.22 28.2.23 PMO to invite Midland Met Learning 
Campus project lead to attend the next 
Town Deal Board meeting. 

Emma 
Parkes 

Completed 

29.11.22 28.2.23 PMO to update future meeting 
appointments to a duration of two hours. 

Emma 
Parkes 

Completed 

28.06.22 29.11.22 PMO to contact board members to confirm 
their interest to continue as a board member.  
 

R Rahim/  
E Parkes 

Complete 

28.06.22 29.11.22 Terms of Reference to be updated to include 
50% attendance annually is mandatory and 
would trigger individual board member review. 
 

R Rahim/  
E Parkes 

Complete 

28.06.22 29.11.22 PMO to circulate short survey to capture board 
member preference on board meeting day/ 
time. 
 

R Rahim/  
E Parkes 

Complete 

 

Page 12



 

 
 

 
 
 

Smethwick Town Deal Board Membership 
V4 February 2024 

 

 

Name Representing/ Organisation 

Alan Taylor Chair of Smethwick Town Deal Board/ MI Glass 

Cllr Bob Piper SMBC Cabinet Member 

Cllr Farut Shaeen SMBC Smethwick Town Lead 

David Holden Sandwell College 

Gareth Brown Raglan Road Church 

Jatinder Singh Guru Nanak Gurdwara 

John Wood Liberty Engineering 

Leona Bird SCVO 

Cllr Kerrie Carmichael SMBC Leader  

Cllr Peter Hughes SMBC Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Growth 

Jude Thompson Vice Chair of Smethwick Town Deal Board 

Sandeep Shingadia Transport for West Midlands 

Steve Howells Sandwell and West Birmingham CCG 

Samantha Partridge West Midlands Police (A no. of reps in line with rest days) 

Abdul Ali Ileys Community Association 

Mark Wildman Sandwell Leisure Trust 

Richard Flatley Sandwell Visually Impaired 

Cllr Jalal Uddin Soho & Victoria Ward 

Cllr Ashley Lewis Smethwick Ward 

Vic Sylvester On behalf of John Spellar MP Warley Constituency 

Vacancy Young Persons Representative- to be promoted via 
Shape/Youth Forums 

SMBC Officer Representatives (Advisory) 
Shokat Lal Chief Executive 

Surjit Tour Monitoring Officer 

Tammy Stokes Assistant Director, Regeneration and Growth 

Ramesh Prashar S151 Officer/ Director of Finance 

Kelly Thomas Employment and Skills 

Jenna Langford Regeneration Manager 

Rina Rahim Towns Fund Programme Manager 

Emma Parkes Towns Fund Programme Officer 

Hayley Insley Smethwick Town Lead 

Clinton Felicio Smethwick Town Lead Support 

 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 95

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 113

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 
 

Smethwick Town Deal Board 
29th February 2024 

 
 

Subject: Project Reporting 

Contact Officer: Rina Rahim, Towns Fund Programme Manager  

 

1. Purpose of the Report 

 

1.1. To receive an update on project progress and monitoring information for the period of 
October to December 2023. 
 
 

2. Background and Main Considerations 
 

2.1. As West Bromwich, Smethwick and Rowley Regis Towns Fund Programmes are in 
Phase 3 – Delivery, monitoring is a key aspect to ensure the Accountable Body and 
DLUHC track progress of the fund and the projects it is delivering. 
 

2.2. To ensure the Accountable Body and Town Deal Boards receive reporting on a regular 
basis to monitor project progress, expenditure and risks, it is a requirement set by the 
Programme Management Office that West Bromwich, Smethwick and Rowley Regis 
project leads must submit Monitoring, Evaluation and Claim Returns on a quarterly 
basis, as a minimum. 
 

2.3. Report on project performance are submitted to DLUHC on a bi-annual basis due 
every June and December.  The last performance return was submitted on 16 
December 2023 and is awaiting approval from DLUHC. 
 
 

2.4. The latest quarterly returns from projects for the period of October 23- December 23, 
are currently being processed, a detailed report per projects is attached as Appendix 
A with a summary of project progress to date below: 
 
 

• Ron Davis Centre Expansion –Computer equipment has now been installed 
enabling full usage of the rooms.  Other courses taking place includes English, 
Maths and Paediatric First Aid.  First cohort of learners using the facility with 
the computers started in January 24. 

 

• Midland Met Learning Campus – Preliminary works continue to determine 
the final costs.  Awaiting WMCA match funding approval expected in mid-
March to enable contractor to start on site in May 2024. 

 

 

Page 115

Agenda Item 7



• Rolfe Street Canalside Regeneration – Objections to project demolition 
works received following submission of planning application which is resulting 
in delays with the project.  This needs to be resolved to enable works to start.    
 

• Grove Lane Regeneration –An Outline Planning application will be 
submitted to obtain consent in principle, with an application to deal with 
reserved matters to be submitted later. This will hopefully correspond with the 
timing of the public inquiry.  The Statement of Reasons is still being prepared 
and a further attempt to re-engage with the landowner will take place. 
 

• Smethwick Connected –Works on A457 Soho Way dual carriageway, 
Grove Lane and B41236 Cranford Street Works (Phase 4) started in 
February with a 4 month work plan expected.  Canal River Trust works to 
deliver phase 5 Grove Lane, National Cycle Network Route 5, Cape Arm 
Branch is near completion. 
 
 

2.7 Project slippage and risks 
 

To date, a total amount of £19.2m has been received from DLUHC for Smethwick 
Towns Fund programme.  The Q2 return forecasted £8.3m spend by the end of 
March 2024.  The Q3 latest return forecasts the spend at £6.1m which results in a 
slippage of 26% since last report.  This is within the 40% threshold set by DLUHC 
who are regularly informed of the delays and the reasons for slippages where 
applicable.  Ongoing review will continue to take place to ensure slippage does not 
increase above 40%.   
 
The forecast for the next financial year is £15.2m, with the remaining amount of 
£2.1m forecasted for 25/26. 
 
A summary of the cost pressures is presented as Appendix B.  The red risks and 
mitigating actions reported from claims are also summarised in Appendix C. 
 
 

Appendices 
Appendix A Smethwick Reporting October - December 2023 (Private Item) 

Appendix B Budget and Cost pressures (Private Item) 

Appendix C Red risks reported (Private Item) 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 116



Document is Restricted

Page 117

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 189

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 191

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 193

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Project Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24 Jan-25

Towns Fund Ron Davis Centre

Sandwell Herald - 

Learner Awards 

and IT Suite

PR - Promote 

number of 

learners 

assisted

Towns Fund
Midland Met 

Learning Campus

Milestone: Spade 

in ground, works 

start 

Sandwell Herald - 

Update so far

Towns Fund
Grove Lane 

Regeneration

Milestone: 

Acquisition 

complete

Milestone:

Procurment 

exercise commence 

Milestone: 

Procurment exercise 

complete 

Milestone: Pre-

site works 

complete and 

site works 

commence 

Towns Fund
Rolfe St 

Regeneration

Milestone: re-

submission of 

planning application

Milestone: Site works 

complete and Post-

demolition works 

commence

Towns Fund
Smethwick 

Connected

Milestone: Phase 4 pre-site 

works commence

Milestone: Phase 4 

works complete 

P
age 195

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes and Action Log
	Final Meeting Notes - Smethwick Town Deal Board, 15 Nov 23
	Smethwick Town Deal Board Action Log - 15 Nov 23

	5 Governance
	6 Long Term Plan
	6. Private - Long-Term_Plan_for_Towns
	6. Private - Long-Term Plan for Towns_ guidance for ...l authorities and Town Boards - GOV
	6. Appendix A - Private - Data Pack - Gov
	6. Appendix B - Private - Investment Boundary proposed

	7 Project Reporting
	7. Appendix A - Private - Smethwick Project Reporting October - December 2023
	7.  Appendix A MMLC Costs to date - Private
	7. Appendix B -Project Budget pressures - Private
	7. Appendix C - Project Red Risks reported - Private

	8 Forward Plans

